
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 

none 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. January 13, 2025 Study Session Minutes (2025-2027 Work Plan) 
2. January 13, 2025 Regular Minutes 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Max Sassouni and Dan Wald are nominated for re-appointment to the Loop Special Business District by 
Mayor Terry Crow. 

2. Dana Barhard and Tim Schroeder are nominated for re-appointment to the Urban Forestry 
Commission by Councilmember Dennis Fuller. 
 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Peggy Holly was sworn in to the EDRST Board on January 17, 2025 in the clerk’s office 
2. Matt Belz was sworn in to the Plan Commission on January 17, 2025 in the clerk’s office 
3. Maryanne Coley was sworn in to the Pension Board on January 23, 2025 in the clerk’s office. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.   
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior 
to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when 
submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and 
address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1.  Liquor License – Chipotle 
 

K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 
1.  Liquor License for Chipotle Mexican Grill - 8650 Olive Blvd. 63132 
2.  Change order for purchase of Alley Trash truck. 
3.  Heman Park Pool Repair - Off-Season 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

1. City Manager Updates 
2. TIF Fiscal Impact Update (RPA1)  
3. Site Plan - SPR-25-02 Site Development Plan Approval for 8021 Olive Blvd.: C17 Commissary Kitchen. 
4. Site Plan - SPR-25-03 Site Development Plan Approval for 6262 Olive Blvd. 

 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, January 27, 2025 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 
none 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (voice vote required)  

none 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
 none 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

a) Ward 1 Applicant Interviews (list alphabetically, presentation order will be by lottery) 
• Christopher Blumenhorst 
• Lisa Brenner 
• Lee T. Lawless 
• John Stamm 
• Albert J. Timko Jr. 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
 
Posted January 24, 2025. 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


January 13, 2025 - Study Session Minutes 1 

NOTICE OF STUDY SESSION 
2025-2027 Work Plan - (Part 1) 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, January 13, 2025 
5:30 p.m. 

AGENDA 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Study Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, January 13, 2025, Mayor Terry
Crow, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:
Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember John Tieman 
Councilmember Steven McMahon (arrived 5:37 p.m.) 
Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., and Chief of 
Police, Larry Hampton.   

2. CHANGES TO REGULAR AGENDA
Mr. Rose requested that Item K (1); For the 3rd Ward Plan, be moved to the City Manager's Report.

3. 2025-2027 WORK PLAN (PART 1)
Mr. Rose stated he appreciates the opportunity to discuss this Proposed Work Plan for 2025-2027, which is
based on priorities that have previously been established by Council.  Working with the department
directors to develop this plan, it was suggested that we include a new column entitled "Status Update,"
which will allow us to provide Council with more frequent updates on projects within a specific fiscal year
and create a better tool for tracking projects.  Mr. Rose stated the ability to fully understand Council's
priorities will enable staff to incorporate projects into the budgeting process and recommend an allocation of
funding.

Part 2 of the Work Plan will be discussed during a January 2027 meeting. 

Priorities 
• Economic Development
• Public Safety
• Encourage High-Quality Growth
• Prudent Fiscal Management
• Improved Infrastructure
• Employees
• Community Quality of Life and Amenities
• Completed Projects

E - 1 - 1



 

January 13, 2025 - Study Session Minutes 2 
 

Economic Development 
 

Strategic Project  Responsible  Projected Status   Completion Date 
    Position/Dept  Start Date    Projected/Actual 
Creation of Quarterly  Economic  May 2025 
ED Report   Development 
 
Reestablish Business  Economic  July 2025 
Retention & Recruitment Development 
Program 
 
Loop CIP   DCM Development July 2025 
 
Olive Blvd CIP   DCM Development January 2025 
 
Develop Minority &  Economic   July 2025 
Women Entrepreneur  Development   
Program   Manager 
 
Update List of   Economic  May 2025 
Property Inventory  Development 
(City and Privately Owned) Manager 
 
• Economic development projects will be tied to the objective of hiring an Economic Development 

Manager. 
 
• There is approximately 5 million dollars that is being set aside, in addition to Economic Development 

Retail Sales Tax that can be used to create a capital improvement program for Olive Boulevard.  
However, the first step will be to understand exactly what the vision is for Olive.  

 
Councilmember Smotherson asked Mr. Rose if he could explain the difference between The Loop CIP 
identified under economic development and the CIP associated with The Loop Special Business District?  
Mr. Rose stated this concept was developed to make better use of the EDRST funds for infrastructure and 
long-term projects located within The Loop and Olive Blvd.  While the Loop Special Business District does 
have a separate tax, it does not generate enough revenue to cover some of the capital needs that exist.  
Basically, it is used to satisfy their annual requests for events and minor items like trash bins.  Therefore, he 
felt it would be important to initiate a discussion on preparing a Capital Improvement Program to assess 
what The Loop is today and what it should look like in the future.  Councilmember Smotherson asked if 
there was a need to distinguish between the two since EDRST funds will be used for both The Loop and 
Olive?  Mr. Rose stated although it is not a requirement, he believes that both entities have their own culture 
and that having separate capital improvement programs would allow you to highlight those distinct features.  
But, if Council desires to have one CIP it can certainly be handled that way.   
 Under the category of "Update list of property inventory," Councilmember Smotherson asked if 
he could get an explanation of what "privately-owned" property referred to?  Mr. Rose stated the goal is to 
conduct an audit of vacant properties, so staff has a better understanding of what properties are available 
for development when they receive calls from potential business owners.    

E - 1 - 2



 

January 13, 2025 - Study Session Minutes 3 
 

 
Public Safety 

 
Strategic Project  Responsible  Projected Status   Completion Date 
    Position/Dept  Start Date    Projected/Actual 
Identify Site for Police &  Fire & Police Dept. January 2025 
(ISO Rating) Satellite Facility 
Development 
 
Construction of Police &  City Manager, Police, August 2023    December 2027 
Court Facility   Public Works,  
    Planning & Zoning 
 
Evaluate Community  Fire Dept.  July 2024 Working with state 
Paramedic Program       legislative delegation 
         to pass required bill 
         to allow this program 
 
Establish Vacant   DCM Development July 2025 
Building Fee   City Attorney  
 
Annual Emergency  Human Resources January 2025 
Preparedness Training 
for City Staff 
 
1/4 Fire Sales Tax  City Manager/Fire January 2025 
For Paramedic Healthcare Department 
Services (Prop C) 
 
Installation of License  Police   July 2024 
Plate Readers on  
Delmar & Olive 
 
Report on Potential Use  Police/Fire  January 2025 
Of Robotics in Policing 
& Fire 
 
• The joint Satellite Facility will be housed somewhere on the west side.  It will be some time before 

the City is in a financial position to build this facility because of its commitment to the Police 
Headquarters and the Courts, so, this is merely being identified as a need.  However, it will be 
important to set aside property that can be used in the future to house this facility. 

 
• The idea of pursuing the 1/4 cent Fire Sales Tax to supplement the cost and equipment needed for 

the Community Paramedic Program was previously discussed. 
 
• When staff looked at other jurisdictions to determine their policies regarding Vacant Building Fees, 

St. Louis seemed to be the most intent about encouraging owners to make use of their buildings.  So, 
this concept is one where staff is asking Council to authorize them to do a deeper dive because the 
result will be fewer vacant buildings within the City. 

 
• Increasingly there are fewer and fewer people interested in policing as a profession, so there is a need 

to look at other ways to provide services associated with public safety.  That can only occur through 
the use of innovative mechanisms such as Robotics.  Chief Hampton and his staff have been asked 
to prepare a report outlining options to be considered for supplementing the efforts of his officers. 

 
 

E - 1 - 3



 

January 13, 2025 - Study Session Minutes 4 
 

ENCOURAGE HIGH-QUALITY GROWTH 
 
Strategic Project  Responsible  Projected Status   Completion Date 
    Position/Dept Start Date     Projected/Actual 
Improve Landlord/Property Planning &  July 2022 
Manager Registration List Development 
Evaluate Vacant House Fee 
 
Solid Waste Rate Study  City Manager  July 2024 Task Force  March 2025 
Update (Sticker Elimination) Finance Director   was created 
         and will recommend 
         rates to Mayor & 
         Council 
 
Report on Architecture  Planning &  October 2025 Study Session planned 
Board    Zoning     for February 2025 
 
Establish 3rd Ward  Deputy City   June 2022 Study Session 
Revitalization Program  Manager    scheduled for 
    of Development    November 2024 
 
Evaluate developing  Public Works  July 2023/24 
Dedicated bike lanes and 
More walkable areas 
www.livingstreetsalliance.org 
 
Update Zoning Code  Planning & Zoning July 2024 An RFP has been distributed 
         to identify a firm to assist with 
         updating the Code 
 
Evaluation of Sustainability Planning & Zoning June 2025 
Plan (What are the fiscal 
Impacts of the ordinance) 
 
Implementation of Online Finance   July 2025 
License Payments 
 
Study of Greenhouse   DCM Development July 2025 
Gas Inventory 
 
Examine Consolidating  City Manager, City July 2025 
BCC's    Clerk/City Attorney 
 
Strengthen Property  Planning  July 2024 
Maintenance Code 
 
Evaluate U Heights proposed Public Works  July 2024 
Stormwater ordinance 
 
• Staff will be recommending that Council accept the Final Plan for the 3rd Ward Revitalization 

Program at tonight's regular session. 
 
• It has been some time since the Sustainability Plan drafted by the Green Practices Commission has 

been reviewed to determine whether it is still achieving the desired results or if modifications are 
needed. 

 

E - 1 - 4



 

January 13, 2025 - Study Session Minutes 5 
 

Councilmember Tieman suggested that some matters associated with sustainability can be considered 
under economic development because of the cost savings.  
 
• Mr. Rose will be working with the City Clerk and City Attorney to review the mission of the City's 

Boards, Committees, and Commissions to see if there are any overlapping objectives. 
 
• The University Height's Proposed Stormwater Ordinance is currently being reviewed by a 

subcommittee of the Planning Commission. 
 

PRUDENT FISCAL MANAGEMENT 
 
Strategic Project  Responsible  Projected Status   Completion Date 
    Position/Dept Start Date     Projected/Actual 
Evaluate Purchasing Cards Purchasing Manager July 2025 
to Determine Feasibility of 
using purchasing cards 
 
Develop Fleet Management Fire   June 2024 
Program 
 
Update Accounting Policy Finance Dept.  July 2023 
and Procedures 
 
Report to City Manager on Finance Dept.  July 2025 
Designated Automated Phone 
Line to Take Payments 
 
Creation of Asset   Purchasing Manager July 2025 
Management Strategy 
& Execution 
 
Examine the Feasibility  City Manager  July 2025 
of Consolidating Some 
Services with other Jurisdictions 
 
• Approximately eight months ago, the Fleet Operations Division was reassigned to the Fire 

Department, and they are doing an outstanding job of managing that operation.  Other programs and 
equipment will be needed to develop a comprehensive program, and Chief Hinson is exploring those 
options.  

 
• The Creation of an Asset Management Strategy to track all of the City's assets has been on hold for 

some time.  The recent hiring of a Purchasing Manager will enable the City to execute this strategy.   
 
• Mr. Rose will be examining the feasibility of consolidating some of the City's support services 

with other jurisdictions to see if a partnership would result in the reduction of costs, while still 
providing the level of service residents have come to expect; i.e., vehicle repairs and IT. 
 

IMPROVED INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Strategic Project  Responsible  Projected Status   Completion Date 
    Position/Dept  Start Date    Projected/Actual 
Creation of Communication DCM    May 2025 
Policy    Support Services 
 
Creation of City-Wide  DCM    May 2025 
Performance Measurements Support Services 

E - 1 - 5



 

January 13, 2025 - Study Session Minutes 6 
 

 
Creation of Webpage  DCM    July 2025 
Connect Residents to  Support Services 
Senior Services 
 
Establish Stormwater  Public Works  September 2023 
Master Plan 
 
Create Road & Sidewalk Public Works  July 2025 
Condition Rating Analysis 
 
• The City-Wide Performance Measurements will be drafted to correlate with the City Manager's 

opinion about what he believes are the three pillars of success for an organization: 1. Ensuring that 
you have a clear vision; 2. Establishing priorities that enable you to achieve that vision, and 3. 
Monitoring that performance to determine if you are achieving those goals.   

 
EMPLOYEES 

 
Strategic Project  Responsible  Projected  Status  Completion Date 
    Position/Dept  Start Date    Projected/Actual 
Update Personnel Policies Human Resources June 2022 
    City Attorney 
 
Conduct Annual Gallup  Human Resources July 2024 
Q12 Employee Survey 
 
Improve Employee Pension City Manager  July 2022 Non-Uniform Plan 
Programs        at 94% 
 
Salary Survey Update  Human Resources July 2025 
 
• Updates on the status of Personnel Policies and the Annual Gallup Q12 Employee Survey will be 

provided in the future. 
 
• As a part of the Salary Survey, the City may need to consider bringing a firm on board to evaluate the 

police pension system, compare it to other jurisdictions throughout the state, and identify the best 
mechanism for improvement.   

 
COMMUNITY QUALITY OF LIFE AND AMENITIES 

 
Strategic Project  Responsible  Projected Status   Completion Date 
    Position/Dept  Start Date    Projected/Actual 
Creation of Summer  DCM Development Oct. 2024 Study Session 
Camp Program   Parks & Recreation   scheduled for 11/12 
         to discussed  
         proposed program 
 
Creation of Free   DCM Development Sept. 2024 
Memberships for school  Parks & Recreation 
district students with a 
certain GPA and/or attending 
Summer school 
 
Resident Satisfaction   DCM    July 2025 
Survey    Support Services 
 

E - 1 - 6



 

January 13, 2025 - Study Session Minutes 7 
 

• Modifications to the Summer Camp Program will be presented at the next Study Session.  To 
maximize the use of the City's facilities and develop a greater focus on learning, staff has suggested 
that future consideration be given to creating free memberships for district students and/or those 
attending Summer Camp with a certain GPA. 

 
COMPLETED PROJECTS 

 
Strategic Project  Responsible  Projected Status   Completion Date 
    Position/Dept  Start Date    Projected/Actual 
Economic Development  Economic   May 2023 August 2023  August 2023 
Portal Web Page  Development 
 
Building Economic  City Manager  July 2022 Sept.  2022  February 2023 
Development Team 
 
Police Accreditation Update Police Dept.  Jan. 2020 Dec. 2022  Dec. 2022 
 
Design Police/Court  City Manager  August 2021 August 2022  August 2022 
Facility    Police, Public Works 
    Planning & Development 
    Fire Department 
 
Dispatch Separation  Fire Department July 2022 March 2023  March 2023 
 
Report of City Manager  Human Resources July 2023 June 2024  June 2024 
On the pros and cons of 
Adjusting employees to the same 
Annual evaluation cycle - 1/2 
In July and others in January 
 
Promote Employee Intranet City Manager  July 2022 Sept. 2023  January 2024 
Site    Communications 
 
Develop Employee  Human Resources June 2022 Dec. 2022  Dec. 2022 
Engagement Team 
 
Report to City Manager  Human Resources January 2024 March 2024  March 2024 
On creating an Internship 
Program 
 
Accessing Methods for  City Manager  February 2022 Dec. 2024  July 2024 
Communication with  Human Resources 
Employees in Real Time 
 
Flexible Work Schedule:  Human Resources July 2023 Sept. 2023  October 2023 
Evaluate plan to investigate 
Telework & other flexible 
Schedules; report Pros & Cons 
 
Create an On-Boarding  Assistant City Manager January 2024 June 2024  April 2024 
Program for Boards,  City Clerk/Legal 
Committees, Commissions, 
Including Sunshine Law  
Procedure 
 
RFP Seafood City  Economic   July 2024 October 2024  September 2024 
Parcel    Development 
 

E - 1 - 7



 

January 13, 2025 - Study Session Minutes 8 
 

 
Councilmember Clay posed the following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q.  How will the City's other Economic Development Plans and the Comprehensive Plan work in 
concert with the proposed Olive Blvd., and Loop CIPs? 
A.  In part, that's why I think the restructuring was needed so that you have a deputy at the executive level 
to oversee these plans and make sure each department is properly executing its assigned duties.  But in my 
opinion, some of these plans fall short of providing specific details about the aesthetics of an area.   There is 
a very dated plan for Olive Blvd. that should probably be reviewed to determine if it still represents the 
Council's vision. 
Q.  So, you believe that having one individual in charge to identify the synergies and/or conflicts 
between each plan would be the way to go? 
A.  I believe that's part of it, but another important component is the creation of a Work Plan that is updated 
on an annual basis.   
Q.  Would monetizing the transfer station be considered a way of working with other jurisdictions?   
A.  I believe that is already a part of the Solid Rate Waste Study.  Another reason why I proposed having a 
lower-level director oversee Solid Waste is to have the ability to market not only the transfer station but also 
explore whether it is reasonable to compete with the private sector for the removal of trash in other 
jurisdictions. The concept is to reduce the City's overall costs to provide a higher level of service to its 
residents, and one way of doing that is by getting economy from the equipment and personnel that it has. 
Q.  I agree.  While I am supportive of the Women and Minority Entrepreneurship Program, given the 
current political environment should we be worried about the legal challenges that could be 
associated with a program like this? 
A.  Even though DEI is unpopular, I don't believe we should stray from what is simply a reality; diversity, 
equality, and inclusion programs are needed.  And until that is no longer the case, I will continue to 
recommend that we proceed in this direction. 
Q.  I agree, but we know the winds have changed. 
A.  There may not be any federal dollars for what ultimately gets approved, but since this falls within the 
area of economic development you may not need those federal dollars.  The idea is to start small, make 
sure we know exactly what we are doing, and then grow the program when it is appropriate to do so. 
 
Mr. Mulligan stated he thinks there are certainly opportunities to promote women and minority 
entrepreneurship within the confines of the law.  But he would suggest that it be studied further before 
making any specific recommendations. 
 
Councilmember Tieman stated as a lifelong resident of U City something he has often thought about is how 
many times people have mistaken what they believe to be the liberalism of this City for what is actually a 
kind of egalitarian tolerance.  So, I think we can no more set that tolerance aside than we can set aside this 
building or anything else because it's simply who we are as a community.  
 
Mr. Rose stated it would be hard to imagine a world where equity is a bad thing.   
 
Councilmember Fuller stated while it's probably inherent, he wanted to make sure that the City's plans for 
economic development included more than just Olive and The Loop?  Mr. Rose stated all of the discussions 
about economic development are from a global perspective of the City.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson suggested that either a category be added to the Work Plan identifying where 
an idea stemmed from, or Council be provided with a document at the next meeting that explains the origin.  
He then asked why a satellite station was being proposed for the west end when the Annex is being 
renovated for the Police Department?  Mr. Rose stated in part, it is based on the anticipated build-out and 
high volume of people that will be frequenting this area.  He stated the worst thing that could happen is for 
the City to find itself in a position where it is unable to ensure the safety of consumers.  So, this is a forward-
thinking plan to make sure we have the resources needed to keep people safe.   
 

E - 1 - 8



January 13, 2025 - Study Session Minutes 9 

Chief Hampton stated they formulated a plan to have a dedicated patrol in this area because of the 
expansion and needs of this business district.  He stated that currently, they are working with Dierbergs to 
conduct a security analysis.   

Councilmember Smotherson stated he was simply wondering why the same type of plan was not being 
formulated for Olive.  Mr. Rose stated it has more to do with the magnitude; you just don't have the same 
kinds of businesses at Delmar and I-170. 

Chief Henderson stated both the Olive business district and Delmar Loop will have dedicated patrols. 

Mayor Crow stated he thinks there is an awful lot of basic governmental blocking and tackling in the Work 
Plan.  So, he appreciates the fact that a lot of issues are getting cleaned up and moved forward.  

He stated while there is the excitement of I-170 and Olive, he would like to remind his colleagues 
that they also have a responsibility to the City's downtown area; The Loop.  And while he is not sure what 
Council's role would be if at some point The Loop tries to reinvent itself, it will still be the City's responsibility 
to support those efforts.    

He stated that he would also ask his colleagues to pay attention to the City's parks in 2025 
because there have been some turnovers in leadership.  Citizens utilize these parks immensely and the City 
has a good reputation for attracting businesses, so he would like to make sure they have as many amenities 
available as possible; including some of the programs Mr. Rose spoke about.  And finally, he would ask his 
colleagues to give specific time and consideration to the idea of consolidating or eliminating some of the 
City's boards, committees, and commissions. 

Mayor Crow stated consideration should also be given to partnering with other jurisdictions 
because he thinks it is incumbent upon Council to look around and see if there are other ways to generate 
revenue or reduce costs.   

4. ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Crow adjourned the Study Session at 6:19 p.m.

LaRette Reese
City Clerk, MRCC

E - 1 - 9





January 13, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes   1 

 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, January 13, 2025,
Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember John Tieman 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 

` Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan Jr., and 
Director of Parks & Recreation, Darin Girdler. 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mayor Crow announced that the City Manager has requested that Item K (1); For the 3rd Ward
Plan, be moved to the City Manager's Report.

Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Tieman, and 
the motion carried unanimously. 

Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve the amended Agenda, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Tieman, and the motion carried unanimously. 

D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement)
None

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. December 9, 2024, Regular Minutes were moved by Councilmember Fuller, it was seconded

by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously.

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. Trish Winchell is nominated for appointment as a fill-in, to the Library Board by Mayor Terry

Crow, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously.
2. Jay Trudeau is nominated for appointment to the Loop Special Business District by Mayor

Terry Crow, it was seconded by Councilmember Fuller, and the motion carried unanimously.
3. Peggy Holly is nominated for appointment to the Economic Development Retail Tax Board

by Mayor Terry Crow, it was seconded by Councilmember Tieman, and the motion carried
unanimously.

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, January 13, 2025 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 2 - 1



January 13, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes   2 
 

4. Matt Belz is nominated for appointment to the Plan Commission by Mayor Terry Crow, it 
was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 

5. Renau Bozarth is nominated for reappointment to the Loop Special Business District by 
Mayor Terry Crow, it was seconded by Councilmember Clay, and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

6. Maryanne Coley is nominated for appointment to the Pension Board by Councilmember 
Stacy Clay, it was seconded by Councilmember Fuller, and the motion carried unanimously. 

7. Chris Trahan and Peter Holmus are nominated for reappointment to the Historic 
Preservation Commission by Councilmember Stacy Clay, it was seconded by 
Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Christopher Blumenhorst, Cirri Moran, Susan Plassmeyer, Alice Boon, and Phillip 
Eastin was sworn in the Solid Waste and Recycling Rate Study Task Force via Zoom on 
December 17, 2025. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 
 
Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments 
may be sent via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. 
– Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to the City Council prior to the meeting.  
Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the 
meeting.  
 
Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also 
note whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not 
provided, the comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
  
Citizen Comments 
Brandon Wilkes, 3915 Dunn Road, Hazelwood, MO 63042   
Mr. Wilkes thanked the Mayor for inviting him to the meeting and stated that he represents the 
St. Louis Reconciliation Network, whose mission is to heal broken race relations by harnessing 
the collective powers of the diverse faith community throughout the city.  One of their unity 
events includes an annual Race for Reconciliation 5K Run/Walk, and last year they had the 
opportunity to work with U City to utilize Delmar as the designated starting point for the course.  
There were over 400 participants, 100 volunteers, and they were able to collaborate with the 
Juneteenth Celebration.  Mr. Wilkes stated that because of the history associated with Delmar, 
they would love to host this year's event here again.  He noted that they had made some minor 
changes to the route so as not to impact the roundabout or the Memorial Day Run, and provided 
Council with a copy of the route being proposed.   
 
Patricia McQueen, 1132 George Street, U City, MO 
Ms. McQueen stated her concern is about the condition of the roads during the last snowstorm.  
She stated that she was not able to get off of her street until Thursday when the plows finally 
came through to salt and shovel the snow.  However, it appeared as though the materials they 
were using to melt the ice had little to no impact on the road conditions.  So she wanted to make 
the City was aware of the need to be more prepared for the next storm, as well as the 
importance of promoting neighborly images by working together.  One of the City's employees 
assigned to plow the streets sat and watched someone who was stuck in the ice, and then 
drove off without offering any assistance.    
 

E - 2 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


January 13, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes   3 
 

I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
None 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 

K. CONSENT AGENDA - (1 voice vote required) 
1. For the 3rd Ward Plan;    (moved to City Manager's Report) 
2. Office 365 Renewal 
3. Ameren Electric Service Easement:  Annex + Trinity 
4. Annual Tree Trimming Project - PRF25-04 
 

Councilmember Fuller moved to approve Items 2 through 4 of the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – (Voice vote on each item as needed) 
1. For the 3rd Ward Plan 

Mr. Rose stated Council appointed a Housing and 3rd Ward Revitalization Task Force to 
prepare a plan for revitalizing the 3rd Ward.  This work has been completed, and staff is 
recommending that the plan be accepted by Council and further, that any programs 
proposed as a result of this plan be placed on a regular Council Agenda for consideration.  
 

Councilmember Smotherson asked Mr. Rose if he could get a legal opinion regarding the 
difference between Council's acceptance and approval of an item?  Mr. Rose stated the distinction 
being made is that when a document is approved, it means Council is amenable to everything 
contained within, and typically, its contents will not be returned to them for additional input or 
direction.  Acceptance of a plan allows Council with an opportunity to provide additional 
consideration, and/or direction to the content contained within that plan.  In this case, Council 
asked the Task Force to prepare a plan and now that it has been completed, he is recommending 
its acceptance.  Councilmember Smotherson asked to be clear; does this mean that as the Task 
Force seeks to implement some of the programs contained within the plan, they will have to be 
brought before Council for approval?  Mr. Rose stated that is correct.  This will be similar to how 
they have handled the City's Summer Camp Program where a Study Session was conducted to 
discuss and tweak the proposals, which are then placed on the agenda for approval.  
 
Mr. Mulligan stated legally, that the plan is a guide for planning purposes; similar to the 
Comprehensive Plan, which requires certain budget appropriations and the passage of Ordinances 
to administer the plan.   
 
Councilmember Clay extended his gratitude to the 3rd Ward Task Force for their dedication to this 
project.  He stated that he thinks Mr. Mulligan's use of the word "guide" is appropriate, since he 
also sees this as a blueprint, much like when an architect designs something and may have to 
make adjustments based on a variety of factors.  Councilmember Clay stated he thinks the 
overarching principles of setting up programs that will benefit existing residents is something 
everyone can get on board with conceptually, and the attention given to the northeast quadrant is 
critical.  So, he is looking forward to seeing the development of these programs take place. 
 
Mayor Crow thanked members of the Task Force for their commitment to developing this incredible 
plan. 

E - 2 - 3



January 13, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes   4 
 

Citizen Comments 
Rosalind Williams, 7408 Chamberlain Avenue, U City, MO 
Ms. Williams stated that throughout her 50 years in City Planning, she has had the privilege of 
working in Kirkwood, Ferguson, and Berkeley, where she managed three TIF projects, and worked 
with the residents in the City of Kirkwood to establish an RFP.  One outcome was the development 
of Kirkwood Commons and the redevelopment of Meacham Park, where she played a key role in 
preparing and implementing a strategic plan for Meacham Park.   
 More recently, she served as the Interim Community Development Director for U City during 
its consideration of the TIF plan.  At the time she was approached by Mr. Rose regarding this 
temporary position, she was retired, but saw this as an opportunity to help the City replicate the 
successful Meacham Park model which directed millions of TIF dollars generated from commercial 
developments towards the revitalization of adjacent residential areas.  Before this appointment, she 
co-founded a not-for-profit to develop and promote inclusionary neighborhoods and the disruption 
of concentrated poverty, which focused on the 3rd Ward to reverse decades of disinvestment 
caused by discriminatory redlining practices.  
 When the City began preparing its RFP for what eventually became the NOVUS 
Redevelopment TIF, she worked in collaborated with Councilmembers Carr and Smotherson to 
ensure that the RFP included broader purposes and goals beyond the commercial redevelopment.  
They advocated for the TIF boundaries to include a larger area that specifically incorporated the 
northeast neighborhood; one of the City's most economically distressed areas.  Including this 
neighborhood within the TIF allowed funding from the commercial development to serve as seed 
money for the revitalization of this sluggish housing market.  Efforts to broaden the scope of 
redevelopment adjacent to the original commercial development became a cornerstone for the 
TIF's success in gaining public acceptance. 
 Ms. Williams stated she is proud of the work they accomplished and the potential impact it will 
have on promoting equitable neighborhood revitalization and sustaining urban development; which 
is what led her to critique the Final Plan for the 3rd Ward.  In summary, the implementation of this 
plan completely misses the mark in fulfilling the TIF's promise to close the housing value gap 
between the wards; particularly for 3rd Ward residents.  It fails to identify the specific challenges 
and issues facing the 3rd Ward, and without a clear understanding of the problems there can be no 
evaluation of what needs to be addressed.  The planning clearly shows the administration's focus 
on routine infrastructure improvements using tax revenue to replace the 10 million dollars allocated 
for the 3rd Ward, but this shift undermines the original housing-focused funding intent.  Apart from 
the 3 million dollars the developer advanced, it remains unclear where the other 7 million dollars is 
allocated.  The residents north of Olive deserve a fair and deliberate transformation plan, which is 
why these very important issues need to be cleared up before any early closure of the TIF is 
undertaken.   
 
Patricia McQueen, 1132 George Street, U City, MO 
Ms. McQueen stated although she served on the Housing and 3rd Ward Revitalization Task Force, 
her comments are from the perspective of a private citizen.   
 After reviewing the 3rd Ward Final Plan written by Yard & Company, and the 2022 Task Force 
minutes, what she noticed is that under stakeholder meetings/interviews, stakeholder 
meetings/public sector, and interviews, there was no mention of members of Council for the 3rd 
Ward being in attendance.  Yet, in previous Neighborhood Plans, they were involved.  This is 
troubling, especially because on December 5, 2022, the Task Force approved the motion to have a 
Council liaison appointed.  
 Ms. McQueen stated she hopes the plan will not be rubber-stamped and believes now is the 
time for a more in-depth conversation about the plan; which was not possible due to the time 
allotted during the Study Session.  For example:  

•  What is the vision or set of goals to guide the 3rd Ward redevelopment efforts? 
•  What are the strategies that would form the framework for progress?   

E - 2 - 4



January 13, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes   5 
 

•  What is the sequencing or prioritization of activities for effective redevelopment; what should 
be addressed first, and why?   

•  What should be done regarding the prevalence of investor-owned properties and the 
substandard conditions of those properties?   

•  Why is a community development corporation with expertise in redevelopment to work with 
the proposed new staff position to lead the implementation of strategies, coordinate 
stakeholders, and ensure long-term accountability? 

 
Councilmember Clay moved to accept the Final Plan, it was seconded by Councilmember 
Smotherson, and the motion carried unanimously. 
  

2. City Manager Updates 
Brooke Sharp 
Mr. Rose stated that he would like to recognize Brooke Sharp, who worked extensively with 
the Housing and 3rd Ward Revitalization Task Force, and that work is appreciated. 
 
Leaf Collection and Snow Removal Programs 
Mr. Rose stated several members of Council have asked for an update on the Leaf 
Collection Program and the Snow Removal Program; which unfortunately, they are still 
implementing. 
 

Mr. Girdler reported that staff collected 14,082 cubic yards of leaves this year during its three-week 
collection cycle, which is down from the 18,000 collected last year.  The City has a three-year 
contract for this service and next year the plan is to stick with the districts, and the timing set aside 
for those districts, to hopefully eliminate some of the confusion about pickup dates and times.  
 The City has 162 lane miles of road and staff used a total of 306 tons of salt which covered 
6,247 miles.  This application of salt equates to 90.78 pounds per salt lane mile average on hand 
that was purchased from the cooperative, and today, another 120 tons of salt was purchased from 
a supplier.  The costs between the supplier and the cooperative were comparable, with an average 
cost of approximately $83.00 a ton.  Mr. Girdler stated although the salt was treated with calcium 
chloride liquid which reacts better with ice; the thickness of the ice during this snowstorm was 
difficult to penetrate.  Staff worked 12-hour shifts for a total of 700 man hours, and the goal is to be 
finished plowing by the end of the week. 
 
 The department will be moving back to the Zone System which is closer to policy.  This 
system consists of a Zone Map with ten zones illustrating First Priority, Second Priority, County 
Streets, State Streets, and Private Streets, which will be made available on the City's website.   
 Last year Council approved the purchase of two trucks, and the lesson learned is that going 
forward, any replacements should be requested in March rather than July. 
One of the department's 2-ton Freightliners was out of commission for a while but is now getting 
outfitted with snow removal equipment that will allow them to pre-treat streets with liquid.  It is 
scheduled to be delivered on Friday.  They are also working to get Truck No. 85; another 2-ton 
Freightliner, outfitted with snow removal equipment.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated his understanding of the snow removal policy is that residents 
are required to move their cars off the street so the City can plow from curb to curb.  That didn't 
occur this time, so he would like to know whether employees were made aware of this policy or if 
they simply disregarded it?  Mr. Girdler acknowledged that more work needs to be done to make 
sure that employees understand their responsibilities under this policy, and agreed that whenever 
possible, everything should be completed before leaving an area.  He stated the goal during this 
storm was to make sure each street was cleared; which could entail one or two passes down that 
street, and then proceed to remove snow from the curbs.  Nevertheless, before the next major 
event, he intends to conduct several training sessions.   

E - 2 - 5



January 13, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes   6 
 

Councilmember Smotherson stated while he certainly admires the folks who have to work during 
these extreme conditions, his street was completely clear of cars, yet only one pass was made 
down the middle of the street, which had little to no impact.    
 
Councilmember Fuller stated he is amazed at the number of people in his Ward who have suddenly 
become experts on street cleaning, but he would like to compliment staff for addressing all of the 
complaints he forwarded to them in such a timely manner.   
 
Councilmember Clay stated he also would like to acknowledge the folks out there doing the 
plowing, who made every effort to address areas of concern when it was brought to their attention.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson pointed out some of the challenges associated with snow removal and 
he thinks that communication could also play a role in this process.  Most folks understand that ice 
complicates things, but if there was a way to communicate what's happening through social media, 
the website, or even something for Council to direct them to, it might ameliorate some of the 
concerns. 
 
Councilmember McMahon stated with respect to the Leaf Collection Program, he is glad to hear 
that Mr. Girdler and his staff have decided to go back to the schedule established for each district.  
He stated that he also appreciates staff's efforts during this recent storm snow because it was not 
an easy job.  Depending on the age of the Zone Map, Councilmember McMahon suggested that 
staff conduct another review of the streets because some changes may have been made to the bus 
routes.   
 
Mayor Crow stated he appreciated Mr. Girdler's candor in discussing the need for additional 
training, and agrees that communication and coordination with the City's partners should be an 
important part of this process.    
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rdreadings) 
 

1. BILL 9563 – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY 
OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER 
JANUARY 13, 2025, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7360.  Bill Number 9563 was 
read for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Fuller moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Tieman. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, 
Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Tieman, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None 
 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 

None 
 Bills - (No vote required on introduction and 1st reading) 

None 
 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

E - 2 - 6



January 13, 2025 - Regular Session Minutes   7 
 

3. Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilmember Smotherson said he has been participating in courses offered by the Missouri 
Municipal League and one thing they taught was the importance of staying in your lane.  As 
members of Council that means focusing on your assigned task to make policy; which, to a 
certain degree, is something he believes this Council has stopped doing.  Instead of making 
policies, policies are being handed to us and rubberstamped.  He stated the 3rd Ward Final Plan 
is one example where Council had no input and the final document was placed on the Consent 
Agenda.  Another example is the Solid Waste Increase.  Councilmember Smotherson stated this 
is a new year and he hopes that Council will begin to adhere to the responsibilities they were 
elected to perform.    
 
Mayor Crow stated something he learned from one of his many experiences is that there are 
different ways to get to the same place.  Every member of Council made an appointment to the 
3rd Ward Task Force and had the right to attend any of their meetings if they had questions or a 
desire to speak.  So, while there may have been some differences in how these goals were 
accomplished, he does not believe any person sitting on this dais abdicated their role or 
responsibilities as it relates to the 3rd Ward Task Force or the Solid Waste Study.  Mayor Crow 
stated U City is a community that engages its residents by asking for their input; which is why 
there are so many boards and commissions.  Nevertheless, despite any disagreement they may 
have about what Council's role should be, he has the utmost respect for his colleague.   
 Mayor Crow stated Council did not get an opportunity to say goodbye or thank you to 
Councilmember Hales, who moved to Jefferson City to take on his new responsibilities as State 
Representative.  So, on behalf of his colleagues, he would like to wish him the best of luck.   
 As he drove up to City Hall this evening he observed that the flags were at half-staff in honor 
of the 39th President of the United States who lived to be 100 years old.  Mayor Crow stated 
Jimmy Carter was one of the few Presidents who did more for the world after he left office.  He 
was a great man and humanitarian, who truly lived his beliefs by working tirelessly for the poor 
and disenfranchised.  
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to adjourn the Regular Session, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Clay, and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
R. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Crow adjourned the Regular Session at 7:23 p.m.  
 

LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 2 - 7



E - 2 - 8



E - 2 - 9



E - 2 - 10



E - 2 - 11



E - 2 - 12



E - 2 - 13



E - 2 - 14



E - 2 - 15





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

PH20250127-01

Liquor License for Chipotle Mexican Grill - 8650 Olive Blvd. 63132

Keith Cole - Director of Finance Finance / All
Public Hearing Yes

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

Chipotle Mexican Grill has applied for All Kinds of Intoxicating Liquor, By the Drink, Retail 
liquor license, including Sunday Liquor License.  

The Applicant / Managing Officer is Lorene Williams.  A background check / investigation by the Police 
Department revealed no disqualifying information. Department Approval has been granted from all necessary 
departments. The applicant has opted out of retrieving the five recommendations from University City citizens, 
and from business owners within a radius of 200 feet.  The applicant is relying on five-sevenths (5/7) vote 
approval from City Council.  A current Certificate of No Sales Tax Due issued by the Missouri Department of 
Revenue was received relative to the business. 2024 personal property tax record for the applicant indicates 
payment of taxes. Current voter registration documentation for the applicant was provided.  

N/A

N/A

City Manager, Gregory Rose January 27, 2025

J - 1 - 1





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250127-01

Liquor License for Chipotle Mexican Grill - 8650 Olive Blvd. 63132

Keith Cole - Director of Finance Finance / All
Consent Yes

City Manager recommends the approval of the liquor license.

Liquor License fee - $750

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

Chipotle Mexican Grill has applied for All Kinds of Intoxicating Liquor, By the Drink, Retail 
liquor license, including Sunday Liquor License.  

The Applicant / Managing Officer is Lorene Williams.  A background check / investigation by the Police 
Department revealed no disqualifying information. Department Approval has been granted from all necessary 
departments. The applicant has opted out of retrieving the five recommendations from University City citizens, 
and from business owners within a radius of 200 feet.  The applicant is relying on five-sevenths (5/7) vote 
approval from City Council.  A current Certificate of No Sales Tax Due issued by the Missouri Department of 
Revenue was received relative to the business. 2024 personal property tax record for the applicant indicates 
payment of taxes. Current voter registration documentation for the applicant was provided.  

1. Application for Liquor License
2. Inter-Office Memorandum Report from the Police Department

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregory Rose January 27, 2025

K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



K - 1 - 3



K - 1 - 4



K - 1 - 5



K - 1 - 6



K - 1 - 7



K - 1 - 8



K - 1 - 9



K - 1 - 10



K - 1 - 11



K - 1 - 12



K - 1 - 13



University C i t y  Police Department 

lnter-offree Memo 

TO: 

FROM: 

Colonel Hampton, Chief of Police DSN 391 

Lieutenant Shawn Whitley DSN 372 

SUBJECT: 8650 Olive BLVD (Liquor License Application) 

CC: 

Business 

Date: 12/17/2024 

Chipotle Mexican Grill of Colorado LLC. 
Chipotle Mexican Grill Store #4512 
8650 Olive BLVD. 
University City MO. 63132 

Managing Officer 

Applicant: Lorene Williams 
Home Address: 5920 Falcon Crest Ln. 
Jefferson City MO. 65102 

D.O.B:
SSN: NIA
Phone: 573-635-7166 

Sir, 

I have reviewed the findings of the investigation completed by Detective Nodari concerning the liquor license
application submitted by, Cbipotle Mexican Grill at 8650 Olive Blvd, University City, MO 63132. Det.
Nodari's investigation was thorough and revealed no cause for a denial for a City of University Liquor License as 
applied for by Lorene Williams of Chipotle Grill. 

K - 1 - 14



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250127-02

Change order for purchase of Alley Trash truck.

W Hinson Fleet
consent

The City Manager recommends change order for PO 24-227 to change the vendor from 
Kranz Body company to Southwestern Equipment company.

 This is an approved purchase that with the change order will save approximately $75,000 
from the original council approved purchase price.

$107,900 08-40-90-8200

solid waste fund solid waste fund

The council approved the purchase of a new alley truck in July.  After approval, the vendor 
was unable to build due to supply shortages.  The truck and body was rebid and 
Southwestern has the materials to build the truck from the new specs.  

We are requesting to change the vendor on the current Purchase order to the vendor that is 
able to supply the product.  This will allow us to order and get a truck that fits the City's 
needs in a timely manner.

Kann body quote.   
Southwestern body quote. 
Copy of the original PO to be changed.

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gegory Rose 1/27/2025

K - 2 - 1



Page 1 of 1        

Kranz Body Co LLC
300 Russell Blvd.

Saint Louis, MO 63104
(314) 776-3787

Q1907Quote #

City of University City
VIN:

0

Inv Date:

1015 Pennsylvania Ave.
Saint Louis, MO 63130

Color:

Trans:

Unit #

Engine:

ODO In:

(314) 862-6767 (314) 505-8543 Ex: A/P - Business

2025 Peterbilt Misc

License #

Driver:
Mfg. Date:

Business PO #

6/06/2024

Service Writer:
Status:

Key Tag / Hat #

Vehicle Problems              Requests for Service              Services Performed Qty

183,835.00CUSTOMER REQUESTS THE INSTALLATION OF KANN SLEC 29YD REFUSE BODY

Labor Service - General Labor
SLEC29YD 1.00New KANN 29YD REFUSE BODY INCLUDING

HOPPER AND FULL EJECT PACKER BLADE
FREIGHT 1.00Sublet FREIGHT

Parts
Sublet

182,740.00
1,095.00

QUOTE

Sub Total 183,835.00

Quote Summary:

Sales Tax (NT)

Total 183,835.00Discard old parts

I hereby authorize the repair work listed herein, including sublet work, to be done along with
necessary materials.  You and your employees may operate the described vehicle for the
purposes of testing, inspection or delivery at our risk.  An express lien is acknowledged on said
vehicle to secure the amount of repairs thereto.  You will not be held responsible for loss or
damage to vehicle or articles left in vehicle in case of fire, theft, accident or any other cause
beyond your control.  Customer agrees to pay all collection costs and /or attorneys fees in the
event that default is made in any payment due.  If vehicle is returned to customer without repair
service being performed, a diagnostic and handling fee (including reassembly) may be charged.
I have read and understand the above and acknowledge receipt of an estimate.

Terms: Payment is due when vehicle is picked up/delivered.  Vehicles left after repair is
completed may be subject to storage fees.

Signature_______________________________________________

Authorization

K - 2 - 2



 

SOUTHWESTERN EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
 
PO Drawer 219 
11000 FM 156 N 
Justin, TX 76247-0219 

 
www.southwesterntrucks.com 

 
Local (940) 242-2700 

National (800) 886-7932 
Fax (940) 242-2700 

 
 
 
 
City of University City                                                                                   December 2, 2024        
6801 Delman Blvd 
University City, MO 63130 
Attn: Tom Bushwood E-Mail: tbrushwood@ucitymo.org 
314-565-5133 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                      Price Quote for SEC Challenger 20 YD                                         
                    (quote only good for 30 days because of new Tariffs on Steel and Parts) 
 
Challenger 20yd Right Hand                                                                                        $ 101,900.00  
Packer Lock-Out                                                                                                                     150.00 
Front Mount Pump                                                                                                               1,800.00                                       
Emco Lift Bar                                                                                                    
48” Reach Cylinder 
3 Work Lights (LED)                                                                                                             250.00                                                                                                                      
1 Strobe Rear                                                          
Led Lights                                                                                                                               500.00 
2 Camera System (Hopper and Rear)                                                                                  1,300.00 
6 Mos Warranty 
Painted White  
200-240 Working Days after receiving Chassis 
Delivered University City (with you getting driver to Airport)                                          2,000.00 
Total                                                                                                                              $107,900.00  
 
Due to the continued escalation in steel pricing this bid/quote maybe subject to steel 
surcharge at time of build. We will be reviewing on a regular basis. Surcharge will be based 
on cost of steel                                                                                                                                                       
 
Thank you for the opportunity to quote. 
 
 
Ricky Sessions 
Southwestern Equipment Co. 
800-886-7932 office 
940-206-1795 cell 
  
 
 

K - 2 - 3



K - 2 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250127-03

Heman Park Pool Repair - Off-Season 

Darin Girdler, Director of Parks & Recreation Pool - All
Consent No

The City Manager recommends approval of the attached proposal for repairs not to exceed 
$20,000.00.

Amount not to exceed $20,000.00.

$20,000.00 01-50-51_6380

01 - General Fund

Repairs as required by the County inspector.

The St. Louis COunty inspector has made us aware of necessary repairs prior to the next 
pool season.

Proposal.  
Email Details. 
Memorandum.

Improved Infrastructure

City Manager, Gregory Rose 01/27/25

K - 3 - 1



K - 3 - 2



K - 3 - 3



 MEMORANDUM 

 TO: Mr. Gregory Rose, City Manager 

FROM: Darin W. Girdler, Director of Parks, Recreation and PAM 

DATE: January 10, 2025  

SUBJECT: Heman Park Pool Repairs – Off-Season 

Attached is a proposal to take care of a few items needing to be addressed at the pool. 

While there is not a total cost proposed, staff and I are confident it will not exceed $20,000.00. 

Without these repairs, the pool drains out the backwash system overnight. 

I recommend the approval of this proposal. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please let me know. 

Thank you. 

K - 3 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

L - 1 - 1

CM20250127-01

City Manager General Updates

Administration - All
City Manager's Report

General updates as provided by the City Manager.

City Manager, Gregory Rose 1/27/2025





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20250127-02

RPA 1 TIF Fiscal Impact Update

Keith Cole - Director of Finance Finance / All
City Manager's Report Yes

N/A

Approximately $1,740,500

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

See memorandum.

1. Memorandum
2. Spreadsheet

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregory Rose January 27, 2025

L - 2 - 1



www.ucitymo.org 
 

 Finance Department 
                                                  6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 863-0921  

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
     

 
TO:  Gregory Rose, City Manager  
 
FROM: Keith Cole, Director of Finance 
 
DATE:  January 27, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: RPA 1 TIF Fiscal Impact – City Portion 
  
 
This is in response to your request for information on the revenue the City has derived from the Market at 
Olive development (the “Development”) in Redevelopment Project Area 1 (RPA 1). 
 
Costco was the first store in RPA 1, on October 25, 2022. Several stores have opened since then, and 
Target and Dierberg’s are scheduled to open in 2026, at which time RPA 1 should be fully developed.  
 
Prior to the Development, there were various retail stores that generated sales tax and real property tax 
revenue in the area now known as RPA 1. The St. Louis County Collector of Revenue determined the 
annual sales tax base for that area in 2018, the year immediately preceding approval of the Development 
by the City Council on June 10, 2019.   
 
There are three City sales taxes relevant to this analysis: Economic Development (.25% rate, $35,585.63 
2018 tax base), Fire Department (.25% rate, $35,585.63 2018 tax base), and Parks and Storm Water 
Control (.50% rate, $71,171.25 2018 tax base).  
 
The City receives 100% of the Economic Development sales tax revenue, so the revenue derived from 
the Development may be calculated by subtracting the $35,585.63 tax base in 2018 from the amount 
received each year thereafter. The difference is known as the “increment.”     
 
With respect to the Fire Department and Parks and Storm Water Control sales taxes, the City receives 
100% of the sales tax revenue until the annual tax bases of $35,585.63 and $71,171.25, respectively, are 
reached. Thereafter, the City receives 50% of the sales tax revenue and the other 50% goes to a special 
allocation fund to pay the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) obligations incurred by the Developer to acquire 
land and construct the improvements in RPA 1.  
 
The real property tax base for the area prior to the Development is not relevant to this analysis because 
100% of the real property tax revenue above the real property tax base in 2018 goes to the special 
allocation fund. The City receives no incremental real property tax revenue. The City will receive 100% of 
the incremental revenue beginning at the expiration of the 23-year life of the TIF, in 2042, or when the TIF 
obligations are paid in full, whichever is sooner. Similarly, the City will begin receiving 100% of the sales 
tax revenue from the three City sales taxes at that time.  
 
Revenue from the three City sales taxes is shown below for calendar years 2023 and 2024, the first full 
years in which only stores in the Development generated sales tax revenue. The 2018 annual tax base 
amounts have been subtracted to show the incremental revenue from the Development. The total 
incremental sales tax revenue for 2023 was $742,572.31 and for 2024 it was $997,923.30. The 
incremental sales tax revenue should be significantly higher after Dierberg’s and Target open in 2026.         
 

L - 2 - 2



www.ucitymo.org 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Questions, let me know. 
 
Keith 

Economic Parks
Development Fire Stormwater

Summary Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Total

Calendar Year 2023 297,028.95   148,514.45   297,028.91   742,572.31       
Calendar Year 2024 399,169.29   199,584.65   399,169.36   997,923.30       

Grand Total 696,198.24 348,099.10 696,198.27 1,740,495.61 

MO Dept of Revenue

L - 2 - 3



City of University City
RPA 1 (T2) TIF Olive I-170 Development
City Portion
Calendar Year

Economic Parks
Development Fire Stormwater

Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Total

January 2023 27,450.79 27,450.79 54,901.57 109,803.15        
February 2023 29,281.80 18,708.32 37,416.64 85,406.76          
March 2023 24,304.32 12,152.16 24,304.33 60,760.81          
April 2023 23,618.29 11,809.14 23,618.30 59,045.73          
May 2023 25,474.42 12,737.21 25,474.40 63,686.03          
June 2023 26,872.47 13,436.23 26,872.47 67,181.17          
July 2023 27,918.57 13,959.28 27,918.56 69,796.41          
August 2023 28,113.01 14,056.51 28,113.00 70,282.52          
September 2023 27,507.09 13,753.54 27,507.07 68,767.70          
October 2023 30,531.26 15,265.63 30,531.26 76,328.15          
November 2023 29,819.03 14,909.51 29,819.02 74,547.56          
December 2023 31,723.53 15,861.76 31,723.54 79,308.83          
less: TIF Base Amount (35,585.63)     (35,585.63)     (71,171.25)     (142,342.51)       

Calendar Year 2023 297,028.95     148,514.45     297,028.91     742,572.31        

Economic Parks
Development Fire Stormwater

Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Total

January 2024 32,563.61 32,561.37 65,122.73 130,247.71        
February 2024 37,131.77 20,079.14 40,158.26 97,369.17          
March 2024 31,604.86 15,802.43 31,604.85 79,012.14          
April 2024 32,374.09 16,187.04 32,374.09 80,935.22          
May 2024 36,187.14 18,093.57 36,187.14 90,467.85          
June 2024 36,327.68 18,163.84 36,327.68 90,819.20          
July 2024 37,442.50 18,721.25 37,442.51 93,606.26          
August 2024 38,120.79 19,060.40 38,120.80 95,301.99          
September 2024 34,636.14 17,318.07 34,636.15 86,590.36          
October 2024 41,526.15 20,763.07 41,526.19 103,815.41        
November 2024 37,561.96 18,780.98 37,561.95 93,904.89          
December 2024 39,278.23 19,639.12 39,278.26 98,195.61          
less: TIF Base Amount (35,585.63)     (35,585.63)     (71,171.25)     (142,342.51)       

Calendar Year 2024 399,169.29     199,584.65     399,169.36     997,923.30        

Grand Total 696,198.24     348,099.10     696,198.27     1,740,495.61     

MO Dept of Revenue

MO Dept of Revenue

L - 2 - 4














































































































	COPY
	Blank Page
	K1 - All Chipotle Mexican Grill  R.pdf
	COPY

	K2 - All alley truck change order.pdf
	COPY

	K3 - All  - 2025 Heman Park Pool Repair.pdf
	COPY

	L1 - All City Mgr General Updates.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	E2 - 2025-01-13 Draft Reg Minutes R.pdf
	Blank Page

	E1- 2025-01-13 Draft Study Session Minutes.pdf
	Blank Page

	L2 - All RPA 1 Fiscal Impact - Council Agenda.pdf
	COPY




